

Committee:Overview and Scrutiny CommitteeDate:Tuesday 18 February 2014Time:6.30 pmVenueBodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, OX15 4AAMembershipCouncillor Ann Bonner (Chairman)Councillor Daniel Sames (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Alyas Ahmed Councillor Alastair Milne Home Councillor Lynn Pratt Councillor Lawrie Stratford Councillor Douglas Williamson Councillor Daniel Sames (Vice-Chairman) Councillor Melanie Magee Councillor Jon O'Neill Councillor Nigel Randall Councillor Rose Stratford Councillor Sean Woodcock

AGENDA

Overview and Scrutiny Members should not normally be subject to the party whip. Where a member is subject to a party whip they must declare this at the beginning of the meeting and it should be recorded in the minutes.

1. Apologies for Absence and Notification of Substitute Members

2. Declarations of Interest

Members are asked to declare any interest and the nature of that interest which they may have in any of the items under consideration at this meeting.

3. Urgent Business

The Chairman to advise whether they have agreed to any item of urgent business being admitted to the agenda.

4. **Minutes** (Pages 1 - 6)

To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 14 January, 2014.

5. Chairman's Announcements

To receive communications from the Chairman.

6. Draft Quarter 3 Exceptions Report (Pages 7 - 36)

Report of Head of Transformation.

Purpose of report

The draft report identifies the areas the Performance team have extracted from the Quarter 3 performance report as areas of concern and achievement, as measured through the Performance Management Framework.

Recommendations

The meeting is recommended:

- 1.1 To note the highlighted areas in this draft report.
- 1.2 Identify any performance related matters for future review by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee or referral to Executive.

7. Housing Services Plan

** Please note, this report will follow after the informal meeting of the Committee on 12 February 2014 **

Report of Head of Regeneration and Housing

Purpose of report

The report provides the Overview and Scrutiny Committee with an update on the work of Housing Services including key challenges and achievements. The report follows the 'order' of the Council's Housing Strategy (2012 - 2017) from which the annual Housing Service Plan flows.

Recommendations

The meeting is recommended:

1.1 To note progress to date in preventing homelessness, delivering and enabling housing development, improving housing standards and commissioning housing related services 1.2 To note the challenging financial context in which services are being delivered.

8. Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme (Pages 37 - 50)

Report of Head of Law and Governance

Purpose of Report

This report presents the Overview and Scrutiny work programme 2013/14 for consideration.

Recommendations

The meeting is recommended:

- 1.1 To consider the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2013/14 as set out at Appendix 1 of the report.
- 1.2 To note any items of interest in the Executive Work Programme and consider whether to include them on the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work programme 2013/14.
- 1.3 To consider if there are any other items Members would like to include on the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme.

Councillors are requested to collect any post from their pigeon hole in the Members Room at the end of the meeting.

Information about this Meeting

Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence should be notified to <u>democracy@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk</u> or 01327 322365 prior to the start of the meeting.

Declarations of Interest

Members are asked to declare interests at item 2 on the agenda or if arriving after the start of the meeting, at the start of the relevant agenda item.

Local Government and Finance Act 1992 – Budget Setting, Contracts & Supplementary Estimates

Members are reminded that any member who is two months in arrears with Council Tax must declare the fact and may speak but not vote on any decision which involves budget setting, extending or agreeing contracts or incurring expenditure not provided for in the agreed budget for a given year and could affect calculations on the level of Council Tax.

Evacuation Procedure

When the continuous alarm sounds you must evacuate the building by the nearest available fire exit. Members and visitors should proceed to the car park as directed by Democratic Services staff and await further instructions.

Access to Meetings

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of these papers or special access facilities) please contact the officer named below, giving as much notice as possible before the meeting.

Mobile Phones

Please ensure that any device is switched to silent operation or switched off.

Queries Regarding this Agenda

Please contact Dave Parry, Democratic and Elections dave.parry@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk, 01327 322365

Sue Smith Chief Executive

Published on Monday 10 February 2014

Agenda Item 4

Cherwell District Council

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Minutes of a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held at Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, OX15 4AA, on 14 January 2014 at 6.30 pm

Present: Councillor Ann Bonner (Chairman) Councillor Daniel Sames (Vice-Chairman)

> Councillor Alyas Ahmed Councillor Lynn Pratt Councillor Lawrie Stratford Councillor Douglas Williamson Councillor Sean Woodcock

Also Councillor Tony llott, Lead Member for Public Protection Present: Councillor Nicholas Turner, Lead Member for Performance and Customers

- Apologies Councillor Melanie Magee for Councillor Alastair Milne Home absence: Councillor Jon O'Neill Councillor Nigel Randall Councillor Rose Stratford
- Officers: Jackie Fitzsimons, Interim Public Protection and Environmental Health Manager Louise Tustian, Senior Performance & Improvement Officer Natasha Clark, Team Leader, Democratic and Elections Sean Gregory, Environmental Protection Officer Dave Parry, Democratic and Elections Officer

44 **Declarations of Interest**

Members declared interests in the following agenda items:

7. Air Quality.

Councillor Alyas Ahmed, Non Statutory Interest, as a taxi operator.

8. Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme.

Councillor Lynn Pratt, Non Statutory Interest, in relation to the Landscape Maintenance Contract update, as Chairman of the Environment Committee at Bicester Town Council. Councillor Sean Woodcock, Non Statutory Interest, in relation to the Housing Service Plan update, as an employee of one of the council's registered providers.

45 Urgent Business

There was no urgent business.

46 Minutes

The Minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 10 December, 2013 were agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

47 Chairman's Announcements

There were no Chairman's announcements.

48 Five Year Business Strategy

The Chairman welcomed Councillor Nicholas Turner, Lead Member for Customers and Performance, and the Senior Performance and Improvement Officer to the meeting.

The Lead Member for Customers and Performance presented the report of the Head of Transformation reviewing the draft five year Business Strategy and emerging priorities for the annual business plan.

The Committee welcomed the report and presentation but commented that individual service plans were the critical documents for review and, accordingly, these should be made available for Member consideration at the earliest opportunity.

The Committee considered possible additional key objectives and milestones, and potential topics for scrutiny review for inclusion on their work programme.

Additional or amended objectives were identified in respect of b4 ('Reduce our carbon footprint and protect the natural environment'); c2 ('Work with Partners to support financial inclusion and help local people into paid employment'), and c6 ('Provide support to the voluntary and community sector'). Members also agreed that some reference should be included regarding promoting tourism within the district.

a5 ('Develop the role of the Cherwell Investment Partnership, to provide a hub for inward investment') and d5 ('Commission and introduce a new asset management strategy') were identified as potential topics for scrutiny review and added to the Committee's work programme.

The Chairman thanked the Lead Member for Customers and Performance and the Senior Performance and Improvement Officer for their attendance and presentation.

Resolved

- (1) That the strategic priorities be noted.
- (2) That Executive be asked to consider the following additional objectives:
 - Regarding b4 ('Reduce our carbon footprint and protect the natural environment') add key objective 'Work with partners to reduce carbon emissions across the district.'
 - Regarding c2 ('Work with Partners to support financial inclusion and help local people into paid employment') – amend Brighter Futures bullet point to include for spreading the lessons learnt across the district as a whole.
 - Regarding c6 ('Provide support to the voluntary and community sector') – include some reference to promoting opportunities for young people.
 - Make some reference to promoting tourism within the district.
- (3) That, with respect to key objective and milestone (a5) 'Develop the role of the Cherwell Investment Partnership, to provide a hub for inward investment', the item be placed on the Committees work programme for an officer briefing.
- (4) That, with respect to key objective and milestone (d5) 'Commission and introduce a new asset management strategy', the item be placed on the Committees work programme as a potential topic for a scrutiny review.
- (5) That details of all Service Plans, together with budget information and details of how targets were to be achieved be advised to all members as soon as possible.

49 Air Quality

The Chairman welcomed Councillor Tony llott, Lead Member for Public Protection, the Interim Public Protection and Environmental Health Manager, and the Environmental Protection Officer to the meeting.

The Environmental Protection Officer presented the briefing note of the Interim Public Protection and Environmental Health Manager, which provided a general update on local air quality management and detailed the current position in respect of Hennef Way, Banbury, which was a declared Air Quality Management Area (AQMA).

The Committee raised concerns that whilst responsibility for monitoring and drawing-up an action plan lay with the Council, most potential remedial actions were the responsibility of other organisations. Particular concern was expressed regarding the apparent absence of penalties should recommended remedial actions fail to be progressed. Accordingly, Members requested

further information in respect of the Hennef Way AQMA Steering Group, and it was suggested that the issue be raised with Oxfordshire County Council and possibly brought to the attention of the appropriate Parliamentary Select Committee.

The Chairman thanked the Lead Member for Public Protection, the Interim Public Protection and Environmental Health Manager, and the Environmental Protection Officer for their presentation and attendance.

Resolved

- (1) That the Environmental Protection Officer be requested to provide Committee members with details of the Hennef Way Air Quality Management Area Steering Group, together with information on measures the Council would consider appropriate if the current additional monitoring showed action was needed.
- (2) That the Democratic and Elections Officer, in consultation with the Chairman, be requested to send letters on behalf of the Committee to Oxfordshire County Council's Banbury County Localities Committee and Bicester County Localities Committee and the Deputy Leader requesting consideration be given to the issue of air quality.
- (3) That this item be retained on the work programme.

50 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

The Committee considered the report of the Head of Law and Governance, which presented the Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme 2013/14.

Executive Work Programme

The Committee agreed that there were no additional items in the Executive Work Programme for February to May, 2014 that they wished to include on their Work Programme in 2013/14.

Housing Service Plan

Members noted that arrangements were in-hand for an informal meeting of the Committee to be held on 12 February to review the Housing Service Plan, and identified a number of areas for particular consideration, including Homelessness; the empty homes policy; Affordable Housing; self-build; the Build Project; the Council's policy regarding the disposal of property by Registered Social Landlords (RSL's) in order to raise funds and build new properties; the impact of new legislation (Spare room subsidy); the Council's relationship with RSL's (how many properties did they have in the various parts of the district?); actions of private landlords and the subsequent impact on housing need.

Contract Scrutiny: Landscape Maintenance Contract

Councillor Lawrie Stratford provided an update on the work he and Councillors Woodcock and Williamson had been undertaking in relation to the landscape maintenance contract scrutiny. Options were being considered with a view to achieving savings and allowing the Council to exercise greater control.

Resolved

- (1) That the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2013/14 be noted.
- (2) That no items in the current version of the Executive Work Programme (February 2014 to May 2014) be included on the Work Programme for 2013/14.
- (3) That, with regard to the informal meeting being held on 12 February to review the Housing service plan, officers be requested to provide information on the following areas: Homelessness; the empty homes policy; Affordable Housing; self-build; the Build Project; the Council's policy regarding the disposal of property by Registered Social Landlords (RSL's) in order to raise funds and build new properties; the impact of new legislation (Spare room subsidy); the Council's relationship with RSL's (how many properties did they have in the various parts of the district?); actions of private landlords and the subsequent impact on housing need.
- (4) That the update in respect of the Landscape Maintenance contract be noted.

The meeting ended at 7.59 pm

Chairman:

Date:

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6

Cherwell District Council

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

18 February 2014

Draft Quarter 3 Exceptions Report

Report of Head of Transformation

This report is public

Purpose of report

The attached Appendix 1 is a draft report of the areas the Performance team have extracted from the Quarter 3 performance report as areas of concern and achievement as measured through the Performance Management Framework.

1.0 Recommendations

The meeting is recommended:

- 1.1 To note the highlighted areas in this draft report.
- 1.2 Identify any performance related matters for future review by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee or referral to Executive.

2.0 Introduction

- 2.1 The first part of the report highlights areas the areas that have exceeded target and have been RAGG* (Red, Amber, Green, Green*) rated as a Green*. The second part of the report highlights areas for further monitoring and that have not made sufficient improvements since Quarter 2.
- 2.2 To measure performance we use a 'traffic light' system where Green* is exceeding the target, Green is 100% of the target met, Amber 90% and above, and Red below 90% and detailed performance indicators and commentary is presented in the appendices to this report.

3.0 Report Details

3.1 The draft Cherwell District Council Performance Report for Quarter 3 Appendix 1.

Table 1. Areas of performance strength to be highlighted and noted the performance across the corporate priorities is generally on track:

Performance Measure	RAGG*	Update	Priority
Support vulnerable residents, focussing on homelessness prevention & housing advice	Green*	We have maintained good performance in delivering homeless prevention focused services. In this quarter the Housing Needs Team opened 233 prevention cases, of these, 101 only required advice, 11 did become homeless and 116 were prevented from becoming homeless through casework intervention. In the period a total of 31 homeless applications were taken and 10 full duties accepted. This represents only 13% of those approaching the Housing Needs Team stating they are in housing crisis.	A District of Opportunity
Number of households living in temporary accommodation	Green*	At the end of December 13 there were 28 Households in Temporary Accommodation, the number has gone down mainly as a result of being able to successfully discharge our duties and enable applicants to move on to secure settled accommodation, whilst keeping the numbers of those presenting for homeless duties low due to the continued focus on homeless prevention.	A District of Opportunity
Processing of major applications within 13 weeks (%)	Green*	The improvement measures have resulted in a sustained increase in performance this year to date. Quarter 3 performance of 80% represents a significant improvement on historic performance.	A District of Opportunity
Average time taken to process new Housing Benefit Claims (days)	Green	A further improvement reflecting the fact that the backlog from summer has been cleared. Performance year to date: 16.74. This reported as Amber last quarter.	A District of Opportunity

Protect and enhance the quality of the built environment by completion of Conservation Area Reviews and strong design guidance for all new developments	Green	The issues reported in the last quarter have now largely been resolved. A new conservation officer has been recruited, who is proving to be a real asset to the team. The level of pre application advice and planning and listed building applications being managed by the team is very high at the moment, which has led to some of the strategic, longer term projects taking longer than initially planned. Conservation Area Appraisals are on target and there are four appraisals and management plans which are very close to being published and should be signed off in the next month. This reported as Amber last quarter.	A District of Opportunity
Processing of minor applications within 8 weeks	Green	Performance this quarter has continued to show improvement, following the action taken during the previous quarter improved. As anticipated, the backlog in registration took some time to take effect, but the improvement is now expected to be maintained. This reported as Amber last quarter.	A District of Opportunity
Processing of other applications within 8 weeks	Green	As for minor applications, performance this quarter has continued to show improvement, following the action taken during the previous quarter. As anticipated, the backlog in registration took some time to take effect, but the improvement is now expected to be maintained.	A District of Opportunity
% houses developed on previously developed land	Green*	34 of the 74 houses completed in Quarter 3 were on previously developed land. This brings the number to 103 out of 275 year to date. This reported as Red last quarter.	A District of Opportunity
Number of risk based food premises inspections completed	Amber	The team remain on target to finish at 100% despite lower than anticipated figures for Quarter 3. This was due in part to a number of food poisoning outbreaks and food alerts from the Foods Standard Agency Year to date.	A Safe, Healthy & Thriving District.

|--|

3.2 Table 2. Areas of performance risk to be kept under review

Performance Measure	RAGG*	Update	Priority
Deliver 500 new homes including through planned major housing projects.	Red	House building in the district has been slow due to the recent market conditions therefore it is possible that the end of year target would not be met. However the Council had released a number of large strategic sites in 2013 which have either received planning permission or resolution to approve, with a view to improving delivery. These sites include: Land east and west of Southam Road, North of Hanwell Fields and West of Bretch Hill. Work has also commenced on the Bankside site at Banbury, and other sites in the rural areas such as Arncott and Milcombe are well underway.	A District of Opportunity
Tonnage of waste sent to landfill	Amber	There has been a small rise in flytipping following a small fall last year. Comparable year to date figure for 2011/12 was 272	A Cleaner, Greener District
Reduce domestic burglary incidents reported by 2% (per 1000 Popn.)	Red	December tends to be the turning point in all crime and therefore a reduction in burglary is anticipated during next quarter	A Safe, Healthy & Thriving District.
Car parking revenue (Cash machines & Ringgo)	Red	Quarter 3 saw a further reduction in car park income. This is in the main due to income reduction from operating a reduced number of car parks in Bicester and the opening of Sainsbury's, a greater impact than was initially projected.	An Accessible, Value for Money Council

3.3 Matters raised in the last Quarter's performance report with a progress update in Quarter three. The RAGG* is included below with an indication of whether the issue has been rectified or is on-going.

Issues raised in the Quarter 2	Progress update
Report	
Planning appeals allowed against refusal decision	This is reporting as Red for this quarter. The performance measure is volatile as it is based on low overall appeal numbers and therefore each decision can impact on the performance measure for appeals. There is no evidence of poor performance, though this continues to be carefully monitored. The Council has faced disappointing appeal decisions in respect of proposals for major developments. The absence of a demonstrated five year housing land supply has been given significant weight by inspectors in allowing the appeals outweighing the harm identified. If these decisions were removed from the figures the number of appeals dismissed would be close to target.
Percentage of Council Tax collected (cumulative)	This is reporting Amber; performance has been maintained for Quarter three.

The Table below illustrates progress against the last quarter's performance concerns.

4.0 Conclusion and Reasons for Recommendations

4.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee reviews the performance of all council services and can make reports or recommendations to Executive and/or Council. The Performance and Insight Team in association with the relevant directorate staff, provide the committee with regular reports on performance against targets and outcomes, direction of travel and explanations of performance.

5.0 Consultation

No specific consultation on this report is required. However, it should be noted that several indicators are based on public consultation or customer feedback.

6.0 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection

6.1 The following alternative options have been identified and rejected for the reasons as set out below.

Option 1: To note the report

Option 2: To request additional information on items and/or add to the work programme for review and/or refer to Executive.

7.0 Implications

Financial and Resource Implications

7.1 Financial Effects – The resource required to operate the Performance Management Framework is contained within existing budgets. However the information presented may lead to decisions that have financial implications. These will be viewed in the context of the Medium Term Plan and Financial Strategy and the annual Service and Financial Planning process.

Comments checked by: Kelly Warburton, Service Accountant, 01295 22, sarah.best@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk

Legal Implications

7.2 There are no legal issues arising from this report.

Comments checked by: James Doble, Democratic and Elections Manager, 01295 221587, james.doble@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk

Risk Implications

7.3 The purpose of the Performance Management Framework is to enable the Council to deliver its strategic objectives. All managers are required to identify and manage the risks associated with achieving this. All risks are logged on the Risk Register and reported quarterly to the Audit Committee.

Comments checked by: Ros Holloway, Performance Information Officer 01295 221578 Ros.Holloway@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk

Data Quality

7.4 Data for performance against all indicators has been collected and calculated using agreed methodologies and in accordance with Performance Indicator Definition Records (PIDRs) drawn up by accountable officers. The council's performance

management software has been used to gather and report performance data in line with performance reporting procedures.

Comments checked by: Ros Holloway, Performance Information Officer 01295 221578, Ros.Hollway@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk

8.0 Decision Information

Wards Affected

All

Links to Corporate Plan and Policy Framework

The Performance Management Framework covers all of the Council's Strategic Priorities

Lead Councillor

Councillor Nicholas Turner Lead Member for Performance and Customer

Document Information

Appendix No	Title						
Appendix 1	CDC Draft Quarter 3 Performance Report						
Background Pape	ckground Papers						
None							
Report Author	Louise Tustian, Senior Performance and Improvement Officer						
Contact 01295 221786							
Information	Louise.tustian2@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk						

This page is intentionally left blank

	Cherwell District Council Business Plan : 2013/2014 Corporate Pledges - Quarter 3 (December 2013)										
Ref	Objective/Measure Definition	Quarter 2 30/09/2013	Quarter 3 31/12/2013	Direction of Travel	Comments on Performance						
	A District of Opportunity										
CBP1 1.2	Continue to support skills development, apprenticeships and job clubs in order to help support local employment and reduce the number of young people not in education, employment or training	G	G	⇔	 <u>Promoting apprenticeships:</u> Leading by example, Cherwell District Council employed a third cohort of Business & Administration Apprentices throughout 2013. The apprentices have completed their 12 month contract, having passed their NVQ2 tests and completed coursework whilst gaining valuable experience and skills to become 'work-ready'. The contracts have been extended until summer 2014 to reflect the academic year's calendar. A temporary 'Apprenticeship' was held in Crown Walk, Bicester for two days to provide convenient access to information about apprentice opportunities for young people and their families. Support and referrals to Oxfordshire Apprenticeships service continues. Inspiring entrepreneurial young people: Continued sponsorship and leadership by CDC of the North Oxfordshire Young Enterprise Award scheme, arranging events to engage school pupils with employers to encourage entrepreneurialism. 						
	Deliver 150 affordable homes in the district and support opportunities for self build and developing self build skills	G Actual 93 Target 66	G Actual 114 Target 91	Ŷ	We are currently ahead of target with the delivery of affordable housing target (2013/14) of 150 housing units.						
CBP1 2.2a	Support opportunities for self build & developing self build skills	G	G	Ŷ	 Orchard Way Scheme, 70 West Street and Springfield Avenue schemes are all completed and occupied. Newton Close, 44 - 46 Boughton Road, St. Anne's House Orchard Lodge, 1 West Street, Juniper Court, 2 Boughton Road, Lincoln House and Calthorpe House are all on site. Jewsons have been appointed as the Council's preferred builders merchant. 14 applicants for Newton Close have had mortgage offers. 						
CBP1 3.1	Complete the Local Plan as the foundation for economic growth in the district	G	G	\hat{T}	Submission of the Local Plan is due in January 2014. QC appointed to support Cherwell. Programme Manager appointed to prepare for examination.						
CBP1 4.6	Continue to strengthen leisure & retail facilities in Bicester and Banbury Town Centres	G	G	$\hat{\Gamma}$	Planning has been deferred for Spiceball whilst consideration of traffic issues occurs. Meanwhile ongoing liaison is taking place with potential development partners and potential anchor tenants.						

Ref	Objective/Measure Definition	Quarter 2 30/09/2013	Quarter 3 31/12/2013	Direction of Travel			Comm	nents on l	Performar	nce		
A Cleaner, Greener District												
CBP2 1.1	Maintain a household recycling rate of above 57%	G Actual 57% Target 57%	G Actual 57% Target 57%	⇔	Bin sale in December & J in tonnage in last quarter		o far has	seen over	800 bins s	sold which	n should lead	to an increase
CBP2 2.1	Improve local residents' satisfaction with street & environmental cleanliness continuing our successful programme of neighbourhood litter blitzes	G Satisfaction Rate: 70%	G	⇔	Programme of neighbour in Banbury	hood blitz	zes contin	ues with t	he next on	e schedul	ed for Janua	ary in Bretch Hill
Pag⊕2 3.1 16	Continue to reduce the Council's carbon footprint by further improving the energy efficiency of our buildings and vehicles	A	A	⇔	Councils Carbon Footprin According to our Carbon from a 2009/10 baseline. Overall carbon dioxide en year. Table 1 shows that fleet emissions has decre leisure emission has decre	Managen Against f nissions f building r eased by creased by creased by audits a rely pursu	the baselin for Q1 and related em 0.1%, bus by 9.6% re being a ued or are	ne last ye d Q2 cominissions h siness mile added to the already in	ar we have bined have as risen by eage emis ne Use of l n place, wi	e reduced e decrease / 0.9%, sions has Natural Re th the exc	emissions b ed by 6% co decreased l esources gro eption of fac	y 11.8% mpared to last by 15.1% and bups individual illities which is
CBP2 3.3	Continue to give Cherwell residents the opportunity to take advantage of low cost insulation by working with partners to set up a "green deal provider"	A	A	₽	Green Deal Together (GE and for which Chris Stratt of State to operate as a G Green Deal Bank and wit January 2014 but Green I In the meantime residents GDT consortium has also the 2 previous DECC Pio Bicester and exemplar er Work to develop the supp Progress nationally with G	ord acts Green De h ECO fu Deal imp s have be o made a neer Plac nergy effici oly-chain	as a direct al Provide ind provid rovements een able to bid for se ces bid, w ciency imp and get in	tor) has re er. GDT is ers. Full la s cannot b o register cond-rour hich delive provemen astallers re	eceived for actively for aunch of th be delivere their intere ad DECC fir ered 100 G ts in 15 ho eady to hel	mal author rmalising he service d by GDT est through unding, to Green Dea mes wher p deliver (prisation fror arrangemen is still plann until then. h the Counc follow up or al Assessme re open days Green Deal i	n the Secretary ts with both the ed for late il's website. The n the success of nts in homes in a have been held.

Ref	Objective/Measure Definition	Quarter 2 30/09/2013	Quarter 3 31/12/2013	Direction of Travel	Comments on Performance						
CBP2 4.2	Start work on site for the initial housing development at Northwest Bicester	G	G	⇒	Work expected to start on site in early 2014.						
	A Safe, Healthy & Thriving District										
CBP3 1.3	Work with local police & licence holders to ensure our town centres remain safe & vibrant in the evenings	G	G	⇒	Night time violence has significantly reduced and there have been no reports of significant disorder						
CBP3 1.5	Continue working with partners to provide support to the most vulnerable individuals & families in the district, building on the Brighter Futures in Banbury Programme	G	G	⇔	Brighter Futures theme priorities established for the year. Additional multi agency projects funded for 2013-14. Successful November partners engagement event undertaken. Municipal Journal Partnership Working and IESE Working Together award submissions made.						
CBP3 3.1	Complete the layout of the sports pitches at the South West Bicester Sports Village and finalise plans for the Pavilion	G	G	\Rightarrow	Work on Phase 1 has now been suspended until the spring when the cycle track and landscaping works will be completed. Design work for the pavilion has now started and the detailed planning application is due to be submitted in March						
Р С Ф 3 4.2 С Ф	Support the upgrade of sports facilities across the District using the Olympic Legacy Fund	G	G	⇒	New pavilion and car park completed at Yarnton Sports Ground.						
Ө - 1 С ВQ 3 4.3	Support the local community & Oxford University Hospital Trust to retain and develop health services at the Horton General Hospital	A	A	⇔	Removal of emergency abdominal surgery from the Horton to Oxford on clinical safety grounds is giving rise for local concern. Proposal longer term is linked to increased outpatient appointments, elective surgery and diagnostic services at the Horton which has been the subject of an Oxfordshire clinical commissioning group consultation in 2013-14.						
CBP3 4.4	Support the local health sector in building a new community hospital in Bicester	G	G	⇒	New community hospital under construction						
	·		An Acces	sible Value	e for Money Council						
CBP4 1.3	Secure cashable savings of at least £500,000 to help meet the medium term financial deficit & continue to identify non cashable savings in procurement	G	G	⇔	£500,000 cashable savings has been delivered as follows: Shared Human Resources business case £110,000 Budget setting building blocks £266,000 Review of planning income £75,000 Procurement Plan cashable savings £53,000						

Ref	Objective/Measure Definition	Quarter 2 30/09/2013		Direction of Travel	Comments on Performance
CBP4 4.1	Improve levels of customer satisfaction focusing on our Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB), Environmental Crime & Car Parking Services	G	G	⇔	All areas of focus have improved, ASB now up to 48% (from 47%) car parking 645 (from 63%) and street cleansing is 70% (from 69%). All show significant improvement from the low in 2011.
CBP4 4.4	Continue to improve our website, the ease of accessing our services and paying for services online	G	G	⇔	Since the successful migration of the online forms to a cloud based package development work continues to harmonise online forms across both councils and deliver improvements through the use of workflow to both external and internal forms

	Cherwell District Council Business Plan : 2013/2014 A District of Opportunity - Quarter 3 (December 2013)									
Ref	Objective/Measure Definition	Quarter 2 30/09/2013	Quarter 3 31/12/2013	Direction of Travel	Comments on Performance					
	Work with partners to tackle disadvantage in the District									
CBP1 1.1	Support vulnerable residents through focussing on homelessness prevention and housing advice at current levels of performance	G	G*	Û	We have maintained good performance in delivering homeless prevention focused services. In this quarter the Housing Needs Team opened 233 prevention cases, of these, 101 only required advice, 11 did become homeless and 116 were prevented from becoming homeless through casework intervention. In the period a total of 31 homeless applications were taken and 10 full duties accepted. This represents only 13% of those approaching the Housing Needs Team stating they are in housing crisis.					
CBP1 1.1a	Number of households living in temporary accommodation	G Actual 37 Target 41	G* Actual 28 Target 41	Û	At the end of December 13 there were 28 Households in Temporary Accommodation, the number has gone down mainly as a result of being able to successfully discharge our duties and enable applicants to move on to secure settled accommodation, whilst keeping the numbers of those presenting for homeless duties low due to the continued focus on homeless prevention					
	Housing advice: repeat homelessness cases	G Actual 0 Target 1	G Actual 0 Target 1	⇔	We continue to have no households present for homeless duties who have previously been accepted as homeless within the last 2 years.					
	Average time taken to process Housing Benefit new claims and change events (days)	G Actual 6.91 Target 11	G Actual 7.65 Target 11	Û	Some further slippage compared to the previous quarters as the backlog that built up during summer was cleared. However, performance remains well within target and not a cause for concern. Year to date performance: 6.33					
CBP4 3.3c	Average time taken to process new Housing Benefit Claims (days)	A Actual 18.39 Target 18.00	G Actual 16.95 Target 18.00	Û	A further improvement reflecting the fact that the backlog from summer has been cleared. Performance year to date: 16.74					
CBP4 3.3d	Average time taken to process change in circumstances (days)	G Actual 5.83 Target 11.00	G Actual 6.46 Target 11.00	仓	Performance remains well within target with good year to date performance of 5.45					

Ref	Objective/Measure Definition	Quarter 2 30/09/2013	Quarter 3 31/12/2013	Direction of Travel	Comments on Performance
CBP1 1.2a	Provide Job Club Services across the District	G	G	⇔	 15 CDC co-ordinated Job Clubs were held during Quarter 3: 6 in Banbury (70* people helped); 6 in Bicester (92 people helped) and 2 in Kidlington (9 people helped) A Job Club Review meeting with partners, led by CDC and chaired by Sir Tony Baldry MP, was held on 4 Oct. This established priority actions needed, included focus upon the over 50 year old cohort (those unemployed for over 6 months) and plans for Job Fairs to support businesses recruiting locally in 2014, matching them with our Job Club clients. A workshop with 10 long-term unemployed people was commissioned by CDC to establish more specifically what help is needed. This proved valuable in developing a proposal for funding through the Brighter Futures in Banbury programme. Venues for Job Clubs have changed to increase their visibility and combine with partners. In Banbury, the venue is now the Town Hall. In Bicester, discussions have been held with the Food Bank, voluntary services and Sainsbury's to consider co-location at a unit in Crown Walk (the business case is being prepared). On 20 Nov, a Brighter Futures Partnership Day was held at Prodrive with an aim of engaging businesses with partners involve in the regeneration programme in Banbury. This proved to be a successful way for partners to understand the needs of employers in relation to workforce skills required and the opportunities that exist in the town to work with world-class employers.
20 CBP1 1.4	Deliver the Brighter Futures in Banbury programme	G	G	₽	Theme priorities established for the year. Additional multi agency projects funded for 2013-14. Successful November engagement event undertaken. Municipal Journal and IESE Working together award submissions made.

Ref	Objective/Measure Definition	Quarter 2 30/09/2013	Quarter 3 31/12/2013	Direction of Travel	Comments on Performance						
	Balance economic development and housing growth										
CBP1 2.1	Deliver 500 new homes including through planned major housing projects.	A Actual : 80 Target : 85	R Actual 74 Target 140	Ŷ	House building in the district has been slow due to the recent market conditions therefore it is possible that the end of year target may not be met. However the Council had released a number of large strategic sites in 2013 which have either received planning permission or resolution to approve, with a view to improving delivery. These sites include: Land east and west of Southam Road, North of Hanwell Fields and West of Bretch Hill. Work has also commenced on the Bankside site at Banbury, and other sites in the rural areas such as Arncott and Milcombe are well underway. This year to date 275 homes have been delivered against the target of 350						
Page 2 CBP1 2.3	Promote local economic growth through business advice, support, inward investment and the Local Enterprise Partnerships (LEPs)	G	G	⇒	Enterprise Support - 21 residents were provided with business start-up advice through the Oxfordshire Business Enterprises (OBE) service hosted by CDC Business Development & Investment - 18 detailed business enquiries were handled, including 7 which could provide valuable investment in sites, premises and jobs in Cherwell The Cherwell M40 Investment Partnership met with local businesses and agencies involved in promoting local development to share intelligence and identify mutual aims Inward investment enquiries from overseas were handled locally in partnership with UK Trade & Investment's service Details provided of Cherwell businesses, interested in exporting, to ensure they were invited to the launch of the Oxon International Business Club on 31 Oct. Support provided to the emerging Oxon Green Business Network - based in Bicester – to develop awareness of opportunities of energy efficiency and environmental technologies amongst local enterprises The annual 'Banbury in Business' conference and exhibition was held on 11 Oct. It attracted around 70 people and local press publicity raised the profile of Banbury and Cherwell's economic opportunities. <u>Town Centre Initiatives</u> Contributed by Government to promote economic prosperity through 'town centre initiatives'. Implementation of projects is underway, with the majority expected to be completed by March 2014. Local Enterprise Partnerships Contributed to LEP bids being prepared for the Strategic Local Plans to inform, for example, EU funding for 2014-2020 CDC has contributed to the development of sector profiles: for example ensuring that Cherwell's performance engineering, logistics and food and drink businesses are reflected in LEP work, developing broadband infrastructure across the whole district and ensuring that business leaders/ambassadors based in Cherwell are informed and involved in opportunities arising from both LEPs.						
CBP1 2.3a	Contribute to creation/safeguarding of 200 jobs	G* Actual 260 Target 160	G Actual 10 (estimated) Target 8	Û	Quarter 2 figures have been revised following final confirmation of total jobs created at Sainsburys. Quarter 3 figures are provisional at this stage but no concerns as year to date figures 296 against the 193						

Ref	Objective/Measure Definition	Quarter 2 30/09/2013	Quarter 3 31/12/2013	Direction of Travel	Comments on Performance
CBP1 2.4	Facilitate on-going development of Cherwell Community Land Trust (CLT)	G	G	⇒	Development of the Community Land Trust is ongoing to include Registered Provider application, applications to secure investment and Board Development.
		Deve	elop a robust and	d locally d	etermined planning framework
CBP1 3.2	Prepare an Infrastructure Plan for CDC & prepare for introduction of Community Infrastructure Levy	G	G	⇔	Infrastructure Plan will accompany submission of local plan in January 2014. The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is not being introduced until 2015 - preparation for the CIL will follow Local Plan.
CBP1 3.3	Secure implementation of new policy for Developer contributions	A	A	⇔	The status of the Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document (July 2011) is still draft. It is still being used for early negotiations between the Council and developers. The Local Plan work will be used to finalise the Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document which is not yet complete.
^{БВР1 3.4} ДС	Protect and enhance the quality of the built environment by completion of Conservation Area Reviews and strong design guidance for all new developments	A	G	Û	The issues reported in the last quarter have now largely been resolved. A new conservation officer has been recruited, who is proving to be a real asset to the team. The level of pre application advice and planning and listed building applications being managed by the team is very high at the moment, which has led to some of the strategic, longer term projects taking longer than initially planned. Conservation Area Appraisals are on target and there are four appraisals and management plans which are very close to being published and should be signed off in the next month.
CBP1 3.4a	Percentage of Conservation Areas with published Management Plans	G Actual 65% Target 62.71%	G Actual 65% Target 64.41%	Û	% with Appraisal - 85% (49) (There are four conservation areas that should be formally adopted in January and February this will bring the percentage to 88%) % with a Management Plan - 65% (39) (this will be 72% when we sign off Cropredy, South Newington, North Newington and Steeple Aston in January / February) We have been progressing with the schedule of Conservation Area Appraisals. Four conservation area appraisals are now very close to being signed off. There has been some rework to Cropredy and North Newington and the consultation period for South Newington and Steeple Aston is now over and these will be published shortly. The team are mentoring the new conservation officer to support the research and writing for North Aston Conservation Area Appraisal.

Ref	Objective/Measure Definition	Quarter 2 30/09/2013	Quarter 3 31/12/2013	Direction of Travel	Comments on Performance
CBP1 3.4b Page 23	Prepare design guidance for major developments	A	А	⇔	 While advice is being given on the majority of strategic sites, the advice is not as timely as it should be due to the pressure of workload. Also, while it is useful to provide advice on other major sites, this is not always possible due to other commitments and a number of sites are being brought forward without design input from CDC. In this period there are a large number of strategic sites coming forward, all at various phases. There is one officer overseeing design advice, who is also responsible for managing the Design and Conservation Team, which takes up a proportion of her time. To address this situation we are intending to recruit an assistant design officer on a temporary contract. Significant input to the following schemes has taken place during the last quarter Bicester 1 - NW Bicester - Masterplanning work is continuing Bicester 3 - SW Bicester - Nagotiations on Phase 2 proposals. Reserved matters applications for Phase 1 continue to come forward. Bicester 8 - RAF Bicester - working with the new owners of Bicester Heritage to bring forward a heritage led enterprise Banbury 4 - Bankside - The reserved matters application for the first phase of development has had significant input at a pre app and a post app stage. A number of design changes have been secured, including an improved landscape and public realm approach, better house types and built form. Banbury 5 - North of Hanwell Fields - design codes are being developed. These still require a significant amount of work bedor they can be submitted. Banbury 9 - Spiceball - The team have provided extensive input to shape the proposals, particularly focused on the character of the scane area, connections across to Spiceball Leisure Centre and the architectural form and vocabulary for the scheme. The application is expected to be presented to Planning Committee in February 2014. Upper Heyford - Substantial input has been given to Upper Heyford and this project has received a great
CBP1 3.5	Processing of major applications within 13 weeks	G* Actual 76.47% Target 50.00% (YTD: 72.73%)	G* Actual 80.00% Target 50.00% (YTD: 75.00%)	Û	The improvement measures have resulted in a sustained increase in performance this year to date . Quarter 3 performance of 80% represents a significant improvement on historic performance.

Ref	Objective/Measure Definition	Quarter 2 30/09/2013	Quarter 3 31/12/2013	Direction of Travel	Comments on Performance
CBP1 3.5a	Processing of minor applications within 8 weeks	A Actual 58.77% Target 65.00% (YTD : 55.72%)	Ŭ	Ŷ	Performance this quarter has continued to show improvement, following the action taken during the previous quarter improved. As anticipated, the backlog in registration took some time to take effect, but the improvement is now expected to be maintained.
CBP1 3.5b	Processing of other applications within 8 weeks	A Actual 74.6% Target 80.00% (YTD: 75.51%)	G Actual 85.36% Target 80.00% (YTD : 78.69%)	Û	As for minor applications, performance this quarter has continued to show improvement, following the action taken during the previous quarter. As anticipated, the backlog in registration took some time to take effect, but the improvement is now expected to be maintained.
CBP1 3.5c	Planning appeals allowed against refusal decision	R Actual 53.85% Target 30.00% (YTD: 50%)	R Actual 40.00% Target 30.00% (YTD: 45.16%)	Û	The performance measure is volatile as it is based on low overall appeal numbers and therefore each decision can impact on the performance measure for appeals. There is no evidence of poor performance, though this continues to be carefully monitored. The Council has faced disappointing appeal decisions in respect of proposals for major developments. The absence of a demonstrated five year housing land supply has been given significant weight by inspectors in allowing the appeals outweighing the harm identified. If these decisions were removed from the figures the number of appeals dismissed would be close to target.
0 BP1 3.5d	Supply of ready to develop housing sites Annual Return	Annual return	Annual return	n/a	Due to report Quarter 4
A CBP1 3.5e	Previously developed land that has been vacant or derelict for more than 5 years	Annual return	Annual return	n/a	Due to report Quarter 4
CBP1 3.5f	% houses developed on previously developed land	R Actual 11.25% Target 25.00%	G* Actual 45.95% Target 25.00% (YTD: 37.45%)	Û	34 of the 74 houses completed in Quarter 3 were on previously developed land This brings the number to 103 out of 275 year to date

Ref	Objective/Measure Definition	Quarter 2 30/09/2013	Quarter 3 31/12/2013	Direction of Travel	Comments on Performance
		Work to impro	ove the quality a	ind vibrand	cy of our town centres and urban areas
CBP1 4.1a	Progress Bicester Town Centre commercial development : Bicester Community Building Plans	G	G	仓	Travelodge have confirmed they wish to participate in the scheme, The additional capital funding for this has been agreed and the design process is underway. An exhibition is under way in the pop-up café.
CBP1 4.2	Complete a Masterplan for Bicester	G	G	₽	Consultation delayed whilst submission is prepared.
CBP1 4.3	Make progress on the Canal Side Regeneration, Spiceball & the redevelopment of the Bolton Road area in Banbury	G	G	\uparrow	Preparation of revised Canalside Supplementary Planning Document is underway

					Business Plan : 2013/2014 Quarter 3 (December 2013)
Ref	Objective/Measure Definition	Quarter 2 30/09/2013	Quarter 3 31/12/2013	Direction of Travel	Comments on Performance
	Provide excellent waste collection and re	cycling service	s, working to rec	luce the an	nount of waste produced and to increase recycling across the district
CBP2 1.2	Reduce the amount of waste sent to landfill	A Actual 6360 Target 5900	A Actual 6400 Target 5900	飰	The amount of residual waste sent to landfill is above target. Total waste sent to landfill this year to-date is 19,326 tonnes against a target of 17,700. At the same time last year 18,304 tonnes had been sent to landfill. The Environment Agency introduced changes last year which requires street sweepings to be landfilled whereas previously they were recycled. Discussions are being held with Oxfordshire County Council to seek alternative arrangements for these to be recycled. Note: December figures are provisional
CBP2 1.3	Maintain the current high levels of customer satisfaction with our recycling & waste collection services	G Satisfaction 83%	G Satisfaction 83%	仓	Customer satisfaction survey 2013 shows an improvement of 3% on last year.
	Work to ensure our st	reets, town cer	ntres, open spac	es and resi	idential areas are clean, well maintained and safe
CBP2 2.2	Work with local communities to continue programme of neighbourhood litter blitzes	G	G	ſſ	Next Blitz will be in Bretch Hill area of Banbury 27-31 January
CBP2 2.3	Number of flytips	R Actual 124 Target 105	A Actual 114 Target 109	仓	There has been a small rise in flytipping following a small fall last year. Performance for the year to date is 338 flytips against target of 310 up on last year which at this point in the year was 272.
	Work to reduce our impact on the	ne natural envir	onment, limit us	e of natura	I resources and support others in the district to do the same
CBP2 3.2	Work with partners to improve the energy efficiency of homes & enable more residents to achieve affordable energy bills	G	G	介	Work to engage with the Cherwell public included :- reprinting and distributing the leaflet on how to reduce energy wastage at home and save money; roadshows to engage with residents directly as part of the Christmas lights events in Kidlington, Banbury and Bicester; funding application for heat district network (DECC) to explore the feasibility of using the heat from the energy generated from waste at the Ardley plan; setting up a working group for solar community pv scheme by approaching businesses in Bicester to have solar panels installed and to use the feed in tariff for further retrofit /energy saving work with Bicester residents.

Ref	Objective/Measure Definition	Quarter 2 30/09/2013	Quarter 3 31/12/2013	Direction of Travel	Comments on Performance
V	Vork with partners to support development of Eco-Bicest	ter as a national	exemplar, creatin	g a vibrant	place where people choose to live, work & spend their leisure time in sustainable ways
CBP2 4.1	Work with partners to progress the delivery of the Masterplan for Bicester	G	G	\hat{T}	The Masterplan is making considerable progress and is on track for the initial presentation of the plan to CDC for end Quarter 1, 2014/15. There remain some issue such as traffic modelling that are yet to be completed and could impact on timescales for completion of the masterplan.
CBP2 4.3	Ensure opportunities for local people to participate in the Eco-Bicester programme	G	G	仓	The Eco Bicester Project Team continues to work with partners to support the development of Eco Bicester. A2Dominion's consultation on the NW Bicester masterplan was attended by approximately 350 people.

						Plan : 2013/2014 er 3 (December 2013)						
	Ref	Objective/Measure Definition	Quarter 2 30/09/2013	Quarter 3 31/12/2013	Direction of Travel	Comments on Performance						
		Work with partners to support the development of safe and thriving local communities and neighbourhoods										
	CBP3 1.1	Continue to provide wide range of recreational activities/opportunities for young people across district	G	G	Ŷ	Secured further funding to continue the Sportivate initiative in 2014/15.						
	CBP3 1.2	Work with partners to maintain already low levels of crime in the district and ensure people feel safe in their communities and town centres	G	G	⇒	All crime remains below last year's final outturn.						
כ	CBP3 1.2a	Reduce all crime incidents reported by 1% (per 1000 Popn)	A Actual: 13.28 Target: 13.26	G Actual: 12.53 Target: 13.27	Û	December saw a slight increase in recorded crime due to increases in reports of violence for this period which is predicted over the festive season. December recorded 611 crimes. The LPA has targeted teams looking at the local offenders causing issues and working with partners have put actions into place.						
	CBP3 1.2c	Reduce domestic burglary incidents reported by 2% (per 1000 Popn.)	R Actual:0.39 Target: 0.30	R Actual:0.50 Target: 0.30	Û	December has seen a decrease in the number of domestic burglary offences recorded. 18 offences. This is the lowest since September. Thames Valley Police have set up tasking's to proactively reduce the number of offences and work with partner agencies for this to remain low.						
J	CBP3 1.2d	Number of anti-social behaviour incidents involving high and medium risk victims	A Actual: 8 Target: 7	G Actual: 3 Target: 7	Û	No new cases received in December						
	CBP3 1.2e	Reduce chronic Anti-Social Behaviour cases	G	G	$\hat{\Gamma}$	One persistent case was added this quarter						
	CBP3 1.2f	% nuisance cases responded to within the prescribed period (a maximum of 48 hours)	G Actual: 97% Target: 96%	G Actual: 98% Target: 96%	⇔	During the quarter 250 service requests were responded to within the time frame out of 251 received						
	CBP3 1.2g	% nuisance cases resolved within 8 weeks	G Actual: 97% Target: 96%	G Actual: 100% Target: 96%	Û	All cases closed within the quarter were within the specified 8 week time frame						
	CBP3 1.2h	Metal theft incidents	G	G	⇔	Licensing requirements of the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 implemented in full and on time. Since the licensing regime came into force one scrap metal dealer has had his vehicle seized following work undertaken in partnership with Thames Valley Police.						

	Ref	Objective/Measure Definition	Quarter 2 30/09/2013	Quarter 3 31/12/2013	Direction of Travel	Comments on Performance
	CBP3 1.3a	% of residents when asked feel safe being home alone after dark	A Satisfaction 93%	G	₽	Further reductions in burglary especially distractions may affect next years survey with a more positive result
	CBP3 1.3b	% of residents when asked feel safe walking alone in town centres after dark	G Satisfaction 59%	G	飰	As reported confidence remains reasonably high
	CBP3 1.4	Work with partners/businesses, support public health, safety & environment protection	G	G	仓	Work with National Catering Association is progressing well with Assured Advice to be issued in three areas generating approximately £1,000 of revenue
	CBP3 1.4a	Number of risk based food premises inspections completed	R Actual: 125 Target : 143	A Actual 164 Target 174	Û	The team remain on target to finish at 100% despite lower than anticipated figures for Quarter 3. This was due in part to a number of food poisoning outbreaks and food alerts from the Foods Standard Agency Year to date performance 458 against target of 436
2000	CBP3 1.6	Number of covert surveillance exercises that have been applied for	G	G	\hat{T}	Zero entries for this quarter
		to play an active role in the district				
	CBP3 2.1	Work with local voluntary sector to provide advisory services for the local community	G	G	⇔	Monitoring report is provided by external partner and is not available at the time of reporting

	Ref	Objective/Measure Definition	Quarter 2 30/09/2013	Quarter 3 31/12/2013	Direction of Travel	Comments on Performance
	CBP3 2.2	Support volunteering across the district	G	G	飰	Volunteer connect contract is delivering a broad spectrum of volunteer opportunities, with a particular focus on volunteering as a route into paid employment. Second quarter monitoring meeting will take place in mid January. Focus for the second half of the year will be to get full support across the district including Kidlington and rural areas. Voluntary organisations Forum was held in July jointly with Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) Reference Group. Well attended and feedback was positive.
	······································	Provide the best poss	ible access to g	ood quality recr	eation and	leisure opportunities in the district
	CBP3 3.2	Maintain current levels high level of visits / usage to district leisure centres following the successful 2012 Olympic & Paralympics	R Actual 277,155 Target 308,409	R Actual: 271,514 Target: 276,579	Û	Bicester Leisure Centre remains closed and continues to contribute to below target throughputs. Kidlington Leisure Centre astro turf reopened, throughputs are back on track with a 300 increase in the last month of the quarter. Spiceball Leisure Centre is above target. Overall the year to date position is 50.649 below the 2012 level and this is unlikely to be caught up even with the reopening of the Bicester Leisure Centre in January 2014.
	CBP3 3.2a	Maintain current levels of visits/usage to Woodgreen Leisure Centre, North Oxfordshire Academy and Cooper School	G* Actual 44,763 Target 35,645	G Actual: 41,452 Target: 39,405	合	All three facilities are up on 2012 levels. Year to date position is up by 19,388, attributable to the Wood Green Leisure Centre pool throughputs during last summer and an increase in dryside usage.
) い つ	CBP3 3.3	Establish an Independent Trust to secure the long term future of Banbury Museum and maintain access for the community	G	G	介	Banbury Museum became independent of Cherwell on 1 November 2013. A monitoring framework was set up and is being trialled. Day to day operations are running smoothly
		Support improve	ment of local he	ealth facilities, se	rvices and	standards across the district
	CBP3 4.1	Work to promote active & independent lifestyles amongst older people	G	G	介	Provided support to three older people groups that were in danger of closing. They are now in a stronger position with a more sustainable structure.
	CBP3 4.1a	Work with partners to deliver 40 active lifestyle sessions monthly for older people	G	G	₽	Active lifestyle sessions being delivered to older people groups through a Service Level Agreement with Age UK Oxfordshire

					Plan : 2013/2014 larter 3 (December 2013)
Ref	Objective/Measure Definition	Quarter 2 30/09/2013	Quarter 3 31/12/2013	Direction of Travel	Comments on Performance
	Provide value for money and a financially	sound organisat	ion, minimising th	e impact of	smaller council budgets on frontline and priority services
CBP4 1.1	Continue to implement and embed an effective approach to address the financial impact of Government welfare reform	G	G	⇔	Welfare Reform Project group continues to progress a number of work streams which are addressing the ongoing impact of the government's welfare reforms and identifying where financial issues are arising.
CBP4 1.2	Continue to plan for the implications of the Local Government Resources Review specifically the changes to localisation of business rates and council tax benefit	G	G	⇔	The Local Government Resources Review is now fully implemented and are being incorporated into normal financial and budgetary monitoring processes.
CBP4 1.5	Ensure the Council's budget is matched to strategic priorities demonstrating and promoting the Council's commitment to value for money and effective service delivery including making more effective use of technology	G	G	⇔	Budget process currently being undertaken with Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) having been updated and the draft budget presented to members and the work programme of the Budget Planning Committee reflecting decisions to be take during the budget process.
CBP4 1.6	Percentage variance on Revenue budget expenditure against profile (+2% / -5%)	G	n/a		Not yet available: Q3 position for revenue & capital currently being finalised
CBP4 1.7	Percentage variance on Capital budget expenditure against profile (+2% / -5%)	G	n/a		Not yet available: Q3 position currently being finalised
HR001	Sickness absence Average days sickness absence per FTE	G Actual 2.14 Target 4.02	unknown		Due to changes in Payroll services it has not been possible to run reports tis quart
		Work wi	th partners to red	uce Counc	il costs
CBP4 2.1	Continue to implement and embed shared back office systems & services to secure efficiencies	А	A	⇔	Work in progress. Now being considered against the transformation programme a 3 way working.
CBP4 2.2	Continue to develop and embed the shared ICT service specifically in relation to phase two of the programme (system standardisation and harmonisation)	G	G	Ŷ	The newly formed Transformation group/team will be reviewing the shared ICT business case.

	Ref	Objective/Measure Definition	Quarter 2 30/09/2013	Quarter 3 31/12/2013	Direction of Travel	Comments on Performance
	CBP4 2.3	Explore further opportunities with partners to share or provide services, reducing costs and maximising income	А	A	仓	Ongoing work with partners being undertaken supported by award of transformation funding to support 3 way working with Stratford.
		Demonstrate that we can b	be trusted to act p	properly for you by	being tran	sparent about our costs and performance
	CBP4 3.1	Improve the information available to the public about our costs and performance, and promote understanding, accountability and opportunity	G	G	₽	Publication of data has continued. The annual report is available on the council's website and financial information is also published.
	CBP4 3.2	Consult with local residents in a cost effective manner to ensure the Council has a good understanding of local priorities	G	G	分	The draft budget consultation is now online this was published in December for members of the public to make comment. An Environmental and Energy survey went live in December for members of the public to make comment about energy efficiency and the environment.
-	CBP4 3.3a	% Council Tax collected (cumulative)	A Actual 58.09 Target 59.25	A Actual 86.4 Target 87.0	介	Consistent performance for Quarter 3
Page (CBP4 3.3b	% NNDR collected	G Actual: 60.47% Target: 60.27%	G Actual: 87.5% Target: 87.5%	仓	Performance consistent and on track
32	CBP4 3.3h	Invoices paid within 30 days	A Actual 95.10 Target 98.00	A Actual 96.48 Target 98.00	仓	Increase due to PO's being raised, the % should increase slowly on a monthly basis
	CBP4 3.3g	Deliver a council tax increase in 2014/15 which is below inflation	due to report Q3		n/a	Awaiting update from Tim Madden
	CBP4 3.3I	Car parking revenue (Cash machines & Ringgo)	A Actual £357,209 Target £397,074	R Actual £366,490 Target £429,330	Ŷ	Quarter 3 saw a further reduction in car park income of over £62k, bringing the shortfall for the year to date to £69k. This is in the main due to income reduction from operating a reduced number of car parks in Bicester and the opening of Sainsbury's, a greater impact than was initially projected. It may also suggest that Bicester town centre has not yet recovered from the disruption and/or that the general health of the economy is still depressed. Year to date income is £1,134,814 against target of £1,203,963.
		Work to ensure we provid	de good custome	r service through	the deliver	y of high quality and accessible services
	CBP4 4.2	Improve levels of satisfaction with and access to information provided by the Council	G	G	介	Engagement via social media continues to increase with Facebook likes up almost 1.5k on the last quarter to 2223. Twitter followers have also increased to 4173. additional services have been made available online and URL's are being changed to ensure they are 'friendly' and more customer focussed.

Ref	Objective/Measure Definition	Quarter 2 30/09/2013	Quarter 3 31/12/2013	Direction of Travel	Comments on Performance
CBP4 4.5	Reduce costs by increasing customer use of online services rather than accessing services at Council offices	G	G	飰	This project is still in the early stages of set-up. The sponsor convened a scoping review meeting at the start of November to ensure current options appraisal work and pilot testing is likely to lead to a viable project delivering the required objectives (which will include a minimum target of 20% reduction in customer contact for each service automated). Current work is around exploring the options to provide a single access route online for Customers, and a request for Expressions of Interest will be issued shortly
CBP4 4.6	Embed programme management, ensuring we have the right projects, properly resourced	G	G	\uparrow	Programme boards continue to meet regularly.

	Cherwell District Council :2013/2014 Equalities - Quarter 3 (December 2013)								
Ref	Objective/Measure Definition	Quarter 2 30/09/2013	Quarter 3 31/12/2013	Direction of Travel	Comments on Performance				
		Then	ne 1 : Fair Ac	cess and C	sustomer Satisfaction				
CEQ1.1	To provide accessible and meaningful consultation events throughout the Cherwell community	G	G	⇔	This quarter has seen a variety of successful community engagement events from Faith and Disability Forums to specific awareness for the deaf community of the Welfare Reform. Further community events are being planned for Quarter 4.				
CEQ1.2	Monitor specific objectives related to older people held within the Rec & Health Plan Implementation and roll out of specific Older People's Strategies	G	G	⇔	Local forums held in Banbury, Bicester and Kidlington.				
CEQ1.3	To review the delivery of our Services	А	G	仓	No complaints received relating to discrimination.				
	Theme 2 : Tackling Inequality and Deprivation								
CEQ2.1	Continue to break the cycle of deprivation within the district (Brighter Futures in Banbury Programme)	G	G	₽	Brighter Futures theme priorities established for the year. Additional multi agency projects funded for 2013/14. Successful November partners engagement event undertaken. Municipal Journal Partnership Working and IESE Working Together award submissions made.				
		Theme	3 : Building S	trong and (Cohesive Communities				
CEQ3.3	Continue to increase Cherwell's knowledge and understanding of the wider community to ensure we fulfil all residents' needs within our services	G	G	⇔	No Connecting Community events this quarter although 2 further events are planned for March:- Bicester - in partnership with Oxfordshire Youth Arts Partnership and Banbury (Market Place) - along with the NHS and Rotary Club in April				
CEQ3.1	Improve opportunities for different groups within communities to work together and build strong community relations	G	G	⇔	CDC have been shortlisted for an Local Government Award in Community Involvement work. The Independent Advisory Group (IAG) is on-going group with attendance from CDC. At the las				
CEQ3.2	Joint working with Thames Valley Police to highlight and reduce any community tension and build trust in local services.	G	G	⇔	meeting a video conference link was held to include representatives from Bicester and Kidlington. Also the group now have representation from the Traveller and Gypsy community who is now attending all IAG meetings, good links were forged.				

Ref	Objective/Measure Definition	Quarter 2 30/09/2013	Quarter 3 31/12/2013	Direction of Travel	Comments on Performance
		Theme	e 4 : Positive	Engageme	nt and Understanding
CEQ4.1	Work with local schools, colleges & sixth forms to engage with the districts younger generation	G	G	Ŷ	Hits' on the Youth website continue to increase and we have had positive feedback from the Youth Councils. Youth Parliament representatives have received additional support to ensure the active input at a County level. Schools engaged in the Local Democracy week culminating with a trip to the Houses of Parliament and a Q & A session with the Local MP, Tony Baldry.
CEQ4.2	Explore and establish links with minority representation/community groups to help	G	G	⇔	 Stop Hate UK contract still valid until 31st March 2013. Further promotional work has been done such as leaflets and mailshots to all consultation database reminding that this service is available to all the community. CDC CSO's have attended the following events and meetings this quarter to better link with difficult to reach individuals Electric Blanket Testing Banbury Fire Station 10th October 2013 - Attended with Trading Standards, Age UK, Carers Oxfordshire, Sustainable Energy/Warm Homes - charity part funded for local services by CDC Housing Information, Advice & Awareness Day - Castle Quay organised by Outreach with cooperation of Castle Quay Management and partnered by Age UK, Carers Oxfordshire and CAB Volunteer Connect Electric Blanket Testing Bicester Fire Station - 24th October 2013 Montgomery House (NHS GP) Bicester - Meeting to discuss upcoming Outreach event Meeting with Samaritans (Banbury) - potentially may join with Food Bank - 22nd October
CEQ4.3	Raise CDC employees and Partners' awareness of diversity within our community	G	G	₽	Alzheimer's and Dementia awareness event planned for March/April 2014. This will coincide with the National Alzheimer's Awareness Week organised by the Alzheimer's Society
		Theme	5 : Demonstr	ating our C	Commitment to Equality
CEQ5.1	Ensure CDC meets all government requirements	G	G	⇔	The Council continues to maintain compliance against the Quality Act 2010 legislation
CEQ5.2	Review CDC performance against Achieving criteria to maintain/improve standards	G	G	⇔	This piece of work will commence at the end of Q4 and will be completed by the Corporate Performance Officer.
CEQ5.3	Ensure staff and services promote and embed equality into their work	G	G	⇒	Majority of employees have now attended this course. Training is available for the remainder and for all new staff using E Learning.
CEQ5.4	Maximise output from the Equality & Diversity Steering Group	G	G	⇔	First joint meeting to be held in Quarter 4 and will be reviewed annually.

Cherwell District Council : 2013/2014 Programmes - Quarter 3 (December 2013)							
Ref	Programme	Quarter 2 30/09/2013	Quarter 3 31/12/2013	Direction of Travel	Comments on Performance		
Place Programme							
CPP01	Eco Town Bicester	G	G	⇔	Work commences in Quarter 1 2014 on Exemplar development at NW Bicester Masterplanning for NW Bicester progressing with public consultation taking place in Quarter 4 2013 Measures to support transition to a low carbon economy progressing within the town.		
CPP02	Bicester Town Centre	G	G	⇔	The design works have recommenced with the tentative agreement from the Travelodge board that they wish to identify 53 rooms within this development. The additional capital funding for this is being progressed		
CPP03	Banbury Brighter Futures	G	G	⇔	Funding commitments have been made to Homestart for work in Grimsbury, the Credit Union for outreach work and for cognitive behaviour training. These total £17.6k. A partners engagement event in November 2013 is expected to bring forward for new ideas and projects later in the year and in 2014/15.		
				Т	Transformation Programme		
CTP01	ICT Shared Services	A	A	⇔	The Project Board began regular meetings again from November 14 2013 and will review the original business case from 2010 against current circumstances - including the scope change proposal to extend harmonisation across a third Council - and the outline plans for this third stage. Risks around capacity have increased slightly since the last report. There are two events causing this increase: the amount of work generated through "business as usual" helpdesk calls have grown (linked to the recent loss of two experienced helpdesk staff and their vacancies being covered by more junior/less experienced staff) and the imminent loss of the Information Systems Manager.		
 CTP02	Service Transformation	G	A	⇔	The HR Shared Service is in the final stages of recruitment,(2 posts are currently unfilled on a permanent basis but are being covered temporarily, pending the recruitment process) but has nevertheless shown very positive signs of embedding well so far, and is being received well by managers, employees and the trade unions across both councils. Plans to bring business cases forward in January for Community Services and Benefit Fraud are on track. Plans for a three way ICT service and a two way Legal Service have been deferred pending the implementation of a new 3 way joint working group, and both are unlikely to be considered before January, causing a delay against the planned schedule, leading to the current assessment of this project as off-track, until we have a new schedule agreed.		

Agenda Item 8

Cherwell District Council

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

18 February 2014

Work Programme 2013/14

Report of Head of Law and Governance

This report is public

Purpose of report

This report presents the Overview and Scrutiny Committee work programme 2013/14 for consideration.

1.0 Recommendations

The meeting is recommended:

- 1.1 To consider the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2013/14 as set out at Appendix 1 of the report.
- 1.2 To note any items of interest in the Executive Work Programme and consider whether to include them on the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work programme 2013/14.
- 1.3 To consider if there are any other items Members would like to include on the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme

2.0 Introduction

2.1 The work programme report identifies the topics and issues under consideration by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and allows an opportunity for additional subjects to be identified and included on the programme.

3.0 Report Details

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

3.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2013/14 is attached at appendix 1.

- 3.2 Members are invited to make any suggestions to improve the appearance of the work programme.
- 3.3 Each future agenda item includes an overview of the item and reason for consideration by the Committee.
- 3.4 In determining the work programme for 2013/14, the Committee will wish to take into account the terms of reference as laid out in the Constitution (Appendix 2).

Executive Work Programme

- 3.6 As part of the monthly work programme report, the Committee reviews the Executive Work Programme to consider whether there are any issues which they would wish to look at in more detail in advance of the Executive discussion and decision. To facilitate a thorough consideration of the topic the Committee will need to identify the Executive Work Programme items at an early stage of the decision making process.
- 3.7 The Executive Work Programme is updated and published monthly; an electronic copy is available on the council's website and all councillors are sent a prompt containing the website link. Members of the Committee are encouraged to review the Executive Work Programme outside the committee meetings and to contact the Chairman, Vice-Chairman or Democratic Services Officer if there is a topic that they wish to review.
- 3.8 The Committee will wish to note any items of interest in the current version of the Executive Work Programme and consider whether to include them on the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme for 2013/14.
- 3.9 At the time of writing this report, the current version of the Executive Work Programme is March 2014 to June 2014 and can be found at: <u>www.cherwell.gov.uk</u>

Future meetings Schedule

3.10 The future meetings of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are listed below:

Overview and Scrutiny	2013/14
Committee	01 April 2014, 6.30pm
	2014/15 27 May, 2014, 6.30pm 08 July, 2014, 6.30pm

4.0 Conclusion and Reasons for Recommendations

4.1 The recommendations as set out in the report are believed to be in the best interests of the Council.

5.0 Consultation

None

6.0 Alternative Options and Reasons for Rejection

6.1 The following alternative options have been identified and rejected for the reasons as set out below.

Option 1: To agree the recommendations as set out in the report.

Option 2: To amend the recommendations.

Option 3: Not to agree the recommendations.

7.0 Implications

Financial and Resource Implications

7.1 There are no financial implications arising directly from this report. The report of the individual scrutiny reviews will address any specific legal issue.

Comments checked by: Kelly Wheeler, Service Accountant, 01327 322224, Kelly.wheeler@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk

Legal Implications

7.2 There are no legal implications arising directly from this report. The report of the individual scrutiny reviews will address any specific financial issues.

Comments checked by: James Doble, Democratic and Elections Manager, 01295 221587, james.doble@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk

Risk Management

7.3 If too many items are included on the work programme there is a risk that scrutiny agenda become overloaded. This undermines effective scrutiny because Members are unable to concentrate on the key issues and officer resources are overstretched. It may be necessary to hold further meetings during the year if the risk of not achieving the work programme becomes apparent. The reports of the individual scrutiny reviews will address any specific risk issues.

Comments checked by: James Doble, Democratic and Elections Manager, 01295 221587, james.doble@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk

8.0 Decision Information

Wards Affected

Each scrutiny review will identify the wards affected.

Links to Corporate Plan and Policy Framework

Each Scrutiny Review will identify the relevant Corporate Plan and Policy framework links.

Lead Councillor

None

Document Information

Appendix No	Title
Appendix 1 Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 20	
Appendix 2	Overview and Scrutiny Committee Terms of Reference
Background Pape	ers
None	
Report Author	Dave Parry, Democratic and Elections Officer
Contact	Tel: 01327 322365
Information	Email – dave.parry@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk



Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Work Programme items - 2013/2014

(Updated: February 2014)

Item	Description	Reason for / Date of next Consideration	Contact Officer	Further Action / Note
₩ Performance Monitoring WFeb)	To receive the Q3 Performance monitoring report.	Regular monitoring by the Committee.	Louise Tustian, Senior Performance and Improvement Officer	Lead Member for Performance and Customers (Cllr Turner) invited to attend.
Housing Service Plan (Feb)	To review outcomes from special informal meeting on 12 February	Committee Request	Chris Stratford, Head of Regeneration and Housing.	Informal meeting, to which all councillors were invited, held on Wednesday 12 February 2014
Commissioning of services to Banbury CAB; including Community Transport and Dial-a-Ride (April)	Undertake monitoring of new service arrangements (Volunteering / coordinating role; giving advice; Voluntary Driver scheme) to ascertain value received following	Committee request	Chris Stratford, Head of Regeneration & Housing; and Chris Rothwell, Head of	The Housing Needs Manager, Countryside and Communities Manager, OCC Transport Coordinator and Banbury CAB Chief Executive to be invited to

Key to Reason for Consideration:

Item	Description	Reason for / Date of next Consideration	Contact Officer	Further Action / Note
	addition contribution.		Community Services	attend a future meeting to advise further on the various elements of the contract.
Customer Insight (Q4) (April)	To undertake regular review of customer complaints and feedback, and ensure issues are addressed.	Committee decision arising September, 2013	Hedd VaughanEvans, Research and Intelligence Officer	
Air Quality (TBC) 4 N	To review monitoring across the District, and review progress of Hennef Way Action Plan objectives.	Report to future meeting advising on how objectives being met and measures Council would consider appropriate if current monitoring shows action needed - following consideration by O&S Committee - October, 2012, May, 2013 and Jan 2014.	Sean Gregory Environmental Protection Officer	Lead Member for Public Protection (Cllr Ilott) to be invited to attend.
Wind Turbines and their locations (TBC)	To undertake a Scrutiny Review regarding the Council's Planning Policy in respect of Wind Turbines and their locations.	Committee request arising April and August, 2013.	TBC	Scrutiny Review to be undertaken by Cllrs Ann Bonner, and Jon O'Neill, supported by Michael Gibbard (Lead Member for Planning, Planning and other officers as

Item	Description	Reason for / Date of next Consideration	Contact Officer	Further Action / Note
				appropriate. November update: Cllr O'Neill would be meeting with Officers shortly.
CDC Employment Initiatives (TBC)	To consider a scoping document regarding a potential review of the effectiveness of the various employment initiatives introduced by the Council.	Committee request arising April, 2013	TBC	November update; Cllr Magee had met with the Economic Development Officer, and would be drafting a scoping document.
Contract Scrutiny: Landscape Maintenance Contract (Ongoing outside of formal meetings. Feedback to be provided at appropriate point)	To receive updates as appropriate. Cllrs Lawrie Stratford, Douglas Williamson and Sean Woodcock nominated to be involved in the procurement of the landscape maintenance contract	Scrutiny review – contract scrutiny	Ed Potter, Head of Environmental Services; Paul Almond, Streetscene and Landscape Services Manager	The nominated Members will provide updates to the Committee as appropriate. November update: Cllr Lawrie Stratford had met the Head of Environmental Services and Street Scene & Landscape Services Manager, and would be meeting with Cllrs. Williamson and Woodcock prior to consideration by Executive. January update: Options

Item	Description	Reason for / Date of next Consideration	Contact Officer	Further Action / Note
				were under consideration with a view to achieving savings and allowing the Council to exercise greater control.
Review of Local Plan process (TBC)	Upon completion of the Local Plan examination, to review the process, and consider lessons learnt for future, similar projects.	Request from Cllr Woodcock with support of Executive.	TBC	
C C C C C C C	Programme for update via Briefi	ng Notes		
₩pdate on Empty Homes	Update on progress in bringing empty homes and other empty property back into use	Originally considered by former Overview and Scrutiny Committee in March, 2013. Update via Briefing Note – April 2014	Chris Stratford (Head of Regeneration and Housing)	
Electronic Document and Records Management (EDRM) (Joint CDC/SNC Transformation Project)	To receive updates as appropriate on the Electronic Document and Records Management (EDRM) project	Scrutiny and Monitoring. Outcomes from pilot (commencing July, 2013). Briefing note to be submitted to Committee six months after implementation.	Jo Pitman, Head of Transformation and Gareth Jones, ICT Manager	Update included in November 2013 report. Scheme now part of Joint CDC/SNC Transformation Project. Committee to receive Briefing note six months after

Item	Description	Reason for / Date of next Consideration	Contact Officer	Further Action / Note
				implementation.
Five Year Business Strategy item 'Develop the role of the Cherwell Investment Partnership, to provide a hub for inward investment.'	To receive an officer briefing on how the role of the Cherwell Investment Partnership is to be developed to provide a hub for inward investment.	Committee request, January, 2014.	Louise Tustian, Senior Performance and Improvement Officer	

Scrutiny review – agreed topics for consideration at committee meetings; Policy development – to support the development of Council Policy; Monitoring – to examine responses to scrutiny reports and to check on progress on implementation of recommendations; Scheduling – to identify and agree potential topics for scrutiny; Information/Standing Item – to update/advise members on issues related to overview and scrutiny or regular committee item

Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee will:

- Innovate and challenge the way the Council operates
- Exercise the call in powers contained in the Constitution
- Add value to the Council through in-depth studies
- Add value to the Council through selective studies of external crosscutting issues
- Promote more informal smaller group working.
- Open up the local democratic process to greater public involvement.
- Add value to the Council through pre-decision scrutiny of Key Decisions through using the 28 day notice
- Be involved in performance management on a selective and strategic basis.
- Develop effective and positive channels of communication between itself and the Executive.
- Adopt a Select Committee style and approach wherever possible.
- Require effective and reliable officer support
- Be involved in the development of Policy
- Scrutinise areas of interest or concern and make recommendations to Executive and where appropriate full Council following the completion of such scrutiny

Terms of Reference

The Committee will be appointed to discharge the functions conferred by Section 21 of the Local Government Act 2000 or Regulations under Section 32 of the Local Government Act 2000

Scrutiny Committee

Co-ordinating and managing the scrutiny Work Programme and ensuring that there is effective and timely scrutiny of Council Policy and authority wide performance as well as holding the Executive to account.

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee will have a membership of 12 Councillors who are not members of the Executive, appointed on a Proportional Representation basis by Council.

Functions

Within its scope and terms of reference, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee will:

(a) review and monitor the performance of the Council's services;

(b) review and/or scrutinise policies, proposals, decisions made or actions taken in connection with the discharge of any of the Council's functions;

(c) make reports and/or recommendations to the Council and/or the Executive in connection with the discharge of any functions;

(d) consider any matter affecting the area or its inhabitants;

(e) exercise the right to Call-in, for reconsideration, decisions made, but not yet implemented by the Executive.

(f) consider matters arising from a Councillor Call for Action (CCfA) under Section 119 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 and Regulations thereunder; and

(g) undertake the functions of the Council's crime and disorder committee for the purposes of Section 19 of the Police and Justice Act 2006, including CCfA relating to crime and disorder matters.

Specific Functions

(a) **Scrutiny** - Within its scope and terms of reference Scrutiny may:

(i) review and scrutinise the decisions made by and performance of the Executive and/or Committees and the appropriate Officers both in relation to individual decisions and over time;

(ii) review and scrutinise the performance of the Council in relation to its policy objectives, performance targets and/or particular service area;

(iii) question Members of the Executive and/or Committees and appropriate Officers about their decisions and performance, whether generally in comparison with service plans and targets over a period of time, or in relation to particular decisions, initiatives or projects;

(iv) make recommendations to the Executive and/or appropriate Committees and/or Council and/or any external bodies arising from the outcome of the scrutiny process;

(v) review and scrutinise the performance of major partnerships and other public bodies in the area and invite written reports and/or request them to address the Committee and local people about their activities and performance;

(vi) require Members of the Executive, the Chief Executive, Directors and Service Heads to attend to answer questions and give evidence on receipt of at least 5 days' written notice.

(vii) question and gather evidence from any person, not a Member or an Officer of the Council, with their consent;

(b) **Advisory and Review** – Within its scope and terms of reference the Overview and Scrutiny Committee may:

(i) assist the Council and the Executive in the development of its Policy Framework by in-depth analysis of policy issues, excluding those policy areas which fall under the remit of the Strategic Planning and Regeneration Committee;

(ii) conduct research, community and other consultation in the analysis of policy issues and possible options

(iii) consider and implement mechanisms to encourage and enhance community participation in the development of policy options,

(iv) make recommendations to Executive and/or appropriate Committees and/or Council and/or any external bodies arising from the outcome of the scrutiny process.

(v) review and scrutinise the performance of major partnerships and other public bodies in the area and invite written reports and/or request them to address Councillors and local people about their activities and performance.

(c) **Annual Report** – The Overview and Scrutiny Committee will report annually to Council on function on their workings and make recommendations for future work programmes and amended working methods if appropriate.

(d) **Work Programme** – The Overview Scrutiny Committee will exercise overall responsibility for the Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme and for ensuring that

this is sustainable with regard to the support and resources that are available to it and that is considered in conjunction with other committees of the Council and their respective work programmes in order to minimise duplication of effort.

Proceedings of Overview and Scrutiny

The Overview Scrutiny Committee will conduct their proceedings in accordance with the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules set out in this Constitution.

This page is intentionally left blank